SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 14, 2017
9:06 a.m

9: 06: 58 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:06 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop, Vice-Chair
Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senator Peter M cciche

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Nat asha von | mhof

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Cathy Gessel; Keith Myer, President, Al aska
Gasline Devel opnent  Corporation; Frank Richards, Vice
President, Program Managenent, Al aska Gasline Devel opnent
Cor por ati on.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

SUMVARY
PRESENTATI ON:  AGDC FI NANCI ALS

ANPRESENTATI ON: - AGDC FI NANCI ALS

9:07:31 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon indicated that Senator Cathy G essel was
invited to join the commttee at the table.

9:08: 31 AM




KEITH  MEYER PRESI DENT, ALASKA  GASLINE  DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATI ON, discussed the presentation "Alaska Mving
Forward: AGDC Update" (copy on file). He felt that the
di al ogue between the legislature and AGC had been
fruitful. He spoke to the request from the |egislature for
greater transparency from the corporation, and rel ayed that
a letter had been sent to the Senate President and to
Senator Ceissel pledging greater clarity and frequency of
information. He related that his comuni cations group woul d
prepare a sem-nonthly report detailing the corporation's
activities and that corporate vice presidents had been
i nfornmed t hat t hey woul d be i ntervi ened by t he
comuni cations departnment, which would result in the
el ectronic report that would be distributed to the senators
and representatives t hat si gned a confidentiality
agreenent. He hoped that there could be a feedback |oop
between |l egislators and the corporation that would provide
the opportunity for legislators to conment on the report
and offer constructive criticism He thought that in 2017
the corporation had nore latitude to be nore transparent
and communi cative, now that the state was the project |ead.
He spoke of the transition agreenments signed in 2016 that
allowed the state to take the lead on the project. He said
that there would be three main areas of focus for 2017:
regul atory, commercial, and financial structuring and the
introduction and engagenent of the gl obal fi nance
comunity.

9:12:19 AM

M. Meyer discussed Slide 27, "AGC PRQECT FUND STATUTES"

AS 31.25.100. In-state natural gas pipeline fund was
created in HB4 for the corporation’s use in planning
fi nanci ng, devel opnent, acqui sition, mai nt enance,
construction, and operation of the in-state natural
gas pipeline described in AS 31.25.005(4) and for
purposes in AS 31.25.005 (4), (6), and (7).

AS 31.25.110. Alaska liquefied natural gas project
fund was created in SB 138 for the corporation’s use
in purposes related to an Al aska |iquefied natural gas
project and for the purpose of transferring net
revenue received by the corporation related to equity
interests, contracts, and other activities to the
appropriate fund of the state as determned by the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



conmi ssioner of revenue in consultation wth the
conmmi ssi oner of natural resources.

9:12: 43 AM

M. Meyer |ooked at Slide 28, "AFE' S, OPERATI NG BUDGETS, &
FUND BALANCES":

EXPENDI TURE AUTHORI ZATI ONS

Conposite AFE total (capital budget): $ 86.4nmm
Remai ni ng FY2017 Operating Budget (Feb-Jun): $ 5.2mm
FY2018 Operating Budget: $ 10.4mm

Total : $102. OmMm

AGDC FUND BALANCES

In-State (incl Al aska USA account) Fund 1229: $26. 0mm
Al aska LNG Fund 1235: $76. Onm

Total : $102. Onm

M. Meyer enphasized that his goal was for AGDC to operate
within the funds that had been allocated to it by the
state. He felt that the corporation had done sufficient
wor k on engi neering and optim zation of the project and had
narrowed the capital cost from a range of $45 to $65
billion, down to a range of $40 to $45 billion. He stressed
that AGC would not be coming to the legislature for
additional funding wuntil a custonmer commtnent or a
strategic financing partner was secured. He spoke to the
nunbers for expenditure authorizations and AGC fund
bal ances illustrated on the slide.

9:15:54 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy asked about HB 4 [passed in 2013] and SB
[ passed in 2014] 138, and asked whether the funds under
each piece of legislation were accounted for separately.

M. Meyer replied in the affirmative.

Senat or Dunleavy queried the coding of the funds on the
three docunents entitled, "FY 16 Contractors,” which |isted
expendi t ur es.

FRANK RI CHARDS, VI CE PRESI DENT, PROGRAM MANAGEMENT, ALASKA
GASLI NE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATI ON (AGDC), el aborated that the
docunents pertained to contractor that AGDC had secured for
FY 16, FY 17, and reinbursable service agreenents for those

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



same years. He said that AGXC had identified the
contractors and their scope of wrk, as well as the
aut horized contracted "not to exceed" anount. He stated
that the figures had not be identified by specific fund
sour ce.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon requested that the contracts be
delineated by fund source, which had been the goal of
review ng the records.

9:17:45 AM

Co-Chair WMacKinnon recalled that she had heard AGDC was
requesting a reappropriation of over $10 mllion.

M. Meyer replied that the request was for $14 mllion. He
relayed that nost of the $86.4 in conposite AFE total,
under expenditure authorizations on Slide 28, was devoted
to the AKLNG project and not the ASAP project.

9:18:46 AM

Vi ce-Chair Bishop requested that the presenter explain any
acronynms he used.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked whether there was a way to identify
if the listed contractors were from in-state or out of
state. He thought it would be helpful to know fund sources
and where the contractors were | ocat ed.

M. R chards explained that AFE was authorization for
expenditure, which was a process mandated by the board in
whi ch authorizations for anobunts greater than what was
provided to the president be presented to the board. He
stated that the authorization for expenditures currently
under di scussion had been presented to the board | ast week,
and had recei ved board approval to nove forward.

9:20: 16 AM

M. Meyer showed Slide 29, "AGDC EXPEDI TURES AND FORECAST, "
which showed a table that separated the operating budget,
AGDC capital (AKLNG ASAP), the Huston office, and the Japan
office, and presented the nunbers for FY 16, 17, and 18.
He noted that the expenditures were detailed in the
previ ous slides.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



M. Meyer discussed the fourth conponent on Slide 29,
"Japan O fice." He relayed that the space was snall. He
said that Japan was an epicenter for liquefied natural gas.
He shared that Masatoshi "N ck" Shiratori was the new state
representative focusing on marketing the AKLNG project and
other trade issues. He stated that M. Shiratori was
facilitating inmportant neetings and was an asset to the
state.

9:25:20 AM

Senat or M cci che wondered whether further detail concerning
the Huston contractors could be nade avail abl e.

M. Myer relayed that AGDC had five contractors in
Houston, largely with comercial roles, and who had been
involved in senior LNG activities. He described the
enpl oyees as a "core team" nost of whom worked on a part-
time basis. He expected that once AGDC began conmmerci al
engagenent those contractors would be tasked with executing
a comerci al agreenent.

Senator M cciche asked whether the contract cost in the
Tokyo office was solely for M. Shiratori.

M. Meyer replied in the affirmative.

9:27: 05 AM

Co-Chair MacKi nnon asked whether the contractors incurred
Publ i c Enpl oyees' Retirenment System (PERS) liability.

M. Richards answered that there was no PERS liability
associated wth the contractors.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked about the aforenentioned reduced
rate that was negotiated on the Huston office space.

M. Meyer replied that the | ease had not gone into service
until February 2017, and the cost reductions would be seen
further into 2018.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon understood that the reduced cost was
reflected on the slide.

M. Meyer replied in the affirmative.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



9:28: 35 AM

M. Myer turned to Slide 30, "AGDC EXPEDI TURES and
FORECAST," which showed two tables that detailed the
Qperating and Capital FY 17 and FY 18 budgets. He expl ai ned
that the slide showed the consistency between the years for
each budget.

9: 29: 23 AM

M. Meyer spoke to Slide 31, "SATELLI TE OFFI CE COSTS"

* Tokyo

— 135 sqgq. ft. office (9 x15")

— Shared conference roomns

— Ability for Japan representative to have neetings
and wor k space

— Japan represents 32% of gl obal LNG purchases

* Houston

— Cccupying a portion of existing AKLNG project space.
- 6,500 sq. ft., $2.43/sq ft until July 31 (existing
| ease), then reduced to

$1.94/sq. ft.

— Fully furnished space with all desks, conference
roons, and video projection capability.

— Inportant asset for the project to be connected to
the US energy hub that hosts nost LNG commrercial and
| egal experti se.

M. Meyer pointed out to the conmttee that the slide
provi ded nore detail on the Tokyo and Houston offices.

9:30: 42 AM

M. Meyer spoke to Slide 32, "CY17 to FY18 QUARTERLY PLAN
BY FUND," which detailed the allocation between the two
pl ans. He deferred further discussion to Frank Ri chards.

M. Richards explained that the table identified spending
by individual funds. He said that the top of the table
identified the indirect cost allocation, or corporate
split, the funding allocation by individual fund sources to
cover the operating expenses wthin AGDC per sonal
services, travel cost, utilities, and other service l|ines.
He stated that the current FY 17 Operating budget
authorization was split 40 percent AKLNG and 60 percent
ASAP. He expounded that now that AGXC was solely

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



responsible for filing wth Federal Energy Regulatory
Comm ssion (FERC), the spending would predonm nately be out
of the Al aska AKLNG project fund. He said that AGDC woul d
be |l ooking to have a new indirect cost allocation plan that
woul d be 90 percent AKLNG project fund and 10 percent ASAP.
He believed the plan was within the l|legislative intent for
the allocated funds. He continued that the overall
operating budget for the remainder of FY 17 was
approximately $5.2 mllion. He furthered that FY 18, by
quarter, represented approximately $10.4 million. He spoke
of the capital spend illustrated on the bottom table, and
was listed in allocation by the individual fund sources. He
relayed that through the remainder of FY 17, and the ful
FY 18, a spend rate out of the AKLNG fund of approxinmtely
$78.9 mllion had been identified, $7.5 mllion out of
ASAP. He related that the capital and operating spending
conbined totaled $102 nillion. He noted that the last two
lines of the table identified the anounts that were
anticipated to be taken out of the individual funds.

9:34:15 AM

Senator M cciche asked why the capital spending reflected
80 percent of the spending for that specific time period of
the permtting stage.

M. Richards relayed that when the joint venture agreenent
was termnated at the end of 2016, AGDC had been tasked
with the responsibility of advancing the AKLNG project,
both comercially and financially, and the regulatory
aspects of FERC filing. He said that the regul atory expense
over the next year and a half would include the conpletion
of the resource reports, assenbly of conplete FERC
application, and filing the application with FERC He
continued that the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)
woul d follow, where the review of the project was conducted
with FERC as the lead federal agency. He sumarized that
AGDC wuld have the responsibility to provide the
envi ronnent al , t he | and, engi neeri ng, and program
managenment efforts to be able to advance the project.

9: 36: 04 AM

Senator Mcciche surmsed that the operating costs were
essentially AGC | abor costs.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



M. Richards stated that AGDC had a small nunber of PCNs
all ocated by the legislature, and that the operating costs
represented the cost only those enployees. He said that the
contractor costs were paid for out of the capital budget
because those positions were project rel ated.

Senator M cciche understood that federal tax status would
be inmportant tot eh project noving forward. He referred to
the docunent, "FY16-FY18 RSAs and Agreenents (copy on
file)," and specifically cited the N xon-Peabody RSA, which
was $100,000 versus the MIllbank RSA for $1 nmllion. He
asked whether Ml Ibank was assisting with the tax status
work, or were they specifically dedicated to commercial and
permtting work.

M. Meyer replied that MI | bank was largely involved in the
structuring, the papering of the financial transactions and
the comrercial agreenents. He said that the N xon-Peabody
work woul d be related to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
interface and tax matters. He stressed that the tax
treatment of the project was not a binary criticality,
meaning that it would not make or break the project. He
asserted that the third party finance was nore inportant
than anything on the project, wth respect to |owering
costs. He said that a structure would be devel oped that
woul d allow for tax efficiency, as well as third party, but
if a choice had to be nade between the two, third party
finance woul d take precedent.

Senator M cciche asked whether the Geenberg Traurig
contract was comerci al

M. Meyer noted that the G eenberg Traurig contract handl ed
commercial work, had been instrunental in transition
agreenents, and they had been engaged in the FERC process.
He noted that the group had different billing rates than
that of M| bank.

9: 39: 44 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon referred to Slides 32 and 28, and the
difference of $2.9 million between the two spending totals.

9:40: 29 AM
AT EASE

9:40: 42 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



RECONVENED

M. Richards responded that the fund balance for the In-
State (including Al aska USA account) Fund 1229 was $26
mllion, and the AKLNG fund was $76 million. He said that
the capital portion on Slide 32 showed a spend rate of
approximately $78.9 million; the difference was the need
for a reappropriation between the funds, to be able to
appropriately spend for the work that needed to be
acconpl i shed.

9:41: 29 AM

\V/ g Ri chards spoke to Slide 33, "FUND BALANCE RE-
APPROPRI ATI ON

AGDC FUND BALANCES

In-State (incl Alaska USA account) Fund 1229: $ 26. 0mm
Al aska LNG Fund 1235: $ 76.0nmm

Total : $102. Omm

ANTI CI PATED EXPENDI TURE BY FUND

In-state Natural Gas Pipeline Fund (I SNGP) $ 11.7mm
Al aska LNG Project Fund (AKLNG $ 90. 3mm

Total : $102. Omm

Capi tal budget re-appropriation of ~$14.3nm from | SNGP
(Fund 1229) to AKLNG (Fund 1235) will be requested

M. Richards said that the $26 mllion for ASAP, and $76
mllion for AKLNG represented the remaining funds avail abl e
for AGDC to advance its |legislative charges. He added that
t he bottom  of t he slide showed t he anti ci pat ed
expenditures. The anticipated expenditures would require a
reappropriation fromthe In-State Natural Gas Pipeline Fund
of $14.3 million to the AKLNG fund.

9:42: 38 AM

M. Richards displayed Slide 34, "H STORICAL AKLNG FUND
APPROPRI ATI ONS, EXPENDI TURES and CASH CALLS." The slide
identified the initial appropriation fromthe passage of SB
138, and showed historical appropriations, cash calls,
bal ance and uses of the AKLNG Project Fund (1235).

9:44: 20 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



Co- Chair Hoffrman asked whether additional authorization by
the |l egislature would be required for the project.

M. Richards replied that the corporation would be able to
live within the neans already provided for the work program
that AGDC hoped to acconplish over the next year and a
hal f .

Co- Chair Hof fman repeated his question.

M. Meyer interjected that the corporation did not intend
to request addi ti onal aut hori zati on unti | a
commerci alization event had been denonstrated, either the
signing of a viable custoner contract, or the engagenent of
a strategic funding partner. He stated that the capital
budget reappropriation would be the exception.

Co-Chair Hoffrman clarified the reappropriation nentioned
was the $2.9 million.

M. Meyer corrected that the reappropriation request was
for $14.3 mllion.

9:45: 54 AM

Co-Chai r MacKi nnon asked whet her AGDC needed t he
reappropriation was necessary, or coul d f unds be
transferred internally.

M. Richards explained that when AGDC had been created and
provided responsibilities under HB 4 and SB 138,
respectively, that the intent of the |egislature was that
the funds should be clearly demarcated. He said that the
| egi slative requirenment was that authority to nove between
the funds should not be granted to AGDC.

Co-Chair MacKinnon stated that the legislature passed a
bill in 2016 that requested access to the internal workings
of the corporation. She felt that transparency had becone
worse since the transfer of the funds. She asked whether a
bill that allowed a representative from both bodies to
participate in closed door AGDC neetings would help wth
t ransparency issues.

M. Meyer responded that financial information about the

corporation was presented at every board neeting. He
reiterated his pledge for nore openness and transparency

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



going forward. He said that the previous confidentiality
agreenent had been restrictive and believed that the | atest
version would open up the doorway to a nore transparent
conmmitment. He asserted that there was nothing in the
agreenents W th pr oducers t hat was comercially
proprietary, which was the only information he believed
shoul d be confidential.

9:49: 16 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon said that action on the senate's request
for transparency had been two years coning, and expressed
appreciation that the relationship between the |egislature
and AGDC was going to be nore open. She relayed that the
conmittee wanted to understand whet her AKLNG and ASAP were
i ndependent of each other, or if the funds were being cross
pollinated. She |anented that the |egislature had not had
access to records in order to audit how the corporation had
handl ed the funds, which was why questions were being asked
regarding the fund balances; the legislature was trying to
determ ne how the noney had been spent and whether it had
been spent consistent with the | aw

M. Meyer stated that there had been segregation of funds
and activities. He assured the comittee that he would
provide the information in detail.

9:50: 47 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy spoke of additional fund requests by the
cor poration. He wondered whether AGDC would ask the
| egislature for additional funding before committing to
commerci al agreements, or after contacts had been signed.

M. Meyer responded that he intended to inform the body of
activities as they developed, with the caveat that the
corporation had to be careful about the disclosure of
i ndi vidual entities the corporation was negotiating wth.
He reiterated that he had instructed his comunications
group to produce a sem-nonthly report in order to
facilitate transparency and feedback. He expounded that the
state being in the lead represented a "new day" wth three
main areas of focus for 2017: regulatory, financial
structuring and engagenent with the financial community,
and the comercial sales of LNG into the broader nmarket
with a focus on Asia and securing tolling custoners. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



said that any requests brought before the |egislature would
be very detail ed.

9:54: 43 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy expressed concern that AGDC coul d request
addi tional funds without fully informng the |egislature of
all of the project details.

M. Meyer replied that the corporation would provide ful
and t ransparent pr oj ect details bef ore requesting
addi ti onal funding.

9:56: 04 AM

Senator von I mhof thought that it would be hel pful to have
regular progress reports on the five "big deliverables":
the FERC and pre-feed, tolling custonmers, tax exenpt
status, LNG buyers, and the funding structure. She queried
how much the corporation had donated to beconme an Iditarod
Sled Dog Race sponsor. She wondered how sponsoring the
race's cerenonial start would help the corporation to reach
its business goals.

M. Meyer responded that the corporation was hosting an
Al aska LNG Summit, which woul d host Asian conpani es and was
timed around the race. He said that the sponsorship was
related to commercial efforts and was also in recognition
of the corporation's in-state obligation and increased
| ocal presence. He asserted that the race was an iconic
Al askan event that would offer wde exposure for the
corporation across a broad geography. He revealed that the
sponsorshi p was for $50, 000.

10: 00: 06 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon understood that AGDC spent $50,000 to
sponsor the Iditarod Sl ed Dog Race.

M. Meyer responded in the affirmative. He added that the
sponsorship would afford AGC event seating, which would be
enjoyed by the visitors from Asi a.

Co-Chair  MacKinnon wondered who was paying for the
attendees of the planned summt and the total cost.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



M. Meyer stated that there would be a fee to attend; there
were sponsors secured and pending, and AGDC was funding
sonme of the event. He was not able to provide exact detai
as to the cost to the corporation.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked for a report on the conference and
breakdown of expenditures. She acknow edged that at tines
it was necessary to spend noney to nmake noney, but that the
current financial clinmate in the state warranted prudence
over frivolity.

10: 03: 10 AM

Senator Mcciche highlighted that the Ilegislature had
reduced its spending by 44.6 percent over the past four

years, but still faced public scrutiny about its spending
habits. He Ilamented that there had been a lack of
transparency between AGDC and the |egislature. He

threatened that wthout transparency and know edge the
| egi sl ature would fight the corporation "every step of the
way" noving forward with the project. He warned that it
would be in M. Myer's best interest to keep the
| egi sl ature infornmed.

M. Meyer acknow edged Senator Mcciche's coments. He
pointed out to the comittee that the corporation had
public support for the project. He furthered that once the
pi peline was in service people would be able to take gas
right off of the line and use it, which would result in a
liberation of the north and mning projects |aunched in the
interior of the state, as well of a security of supply in
pl aced |i ke Anchorage and Fairbanks.

10: 07: 37 AM

Senator M cci che enphasi zed the project's inportance to his
district and to the state. He feared the "lifelong quest to
build it at all cost.” He hoped that the project would be
built on sound econom cs.

Vice-Chair Bishop pointed out that the AGC Board of
Trustees was equally responsible for providing project
t ransparency.

\V/ g Meyer  agreed. He said that the commtnent for

transparency and greater frequency of reporting was strong
wi th the board.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



10: 10: 02 AM

Vi ce-Chair Bishop commented on the tradition of dog-nushing
in the state. He wondered about RSAs, and whether the other
project partners had RSA agreenents with state agencies.

M. Richards stated that what would be reported would be
the RSAs that solely AGDC had been funding with other state
depart nents.

Senator Dunl eavy asserted that the project was inportant to
his district. He asked about a runor that there had been a
second | ook taken at a Valdez route for the project.

M. Myer said that a second |ook was not being taken at
the Valdez route. He relayed that there had been an
intervention filed by a group in Valdez, suggesting that
Val dez would be a better site. He said that there had been
so much work done on the current route to N kiski, the
Ni ki ski site was acceptable, and many alternatives had been
di scussed. He thought that Valdez was a fine enough
| ocation, but Nikiski would be the site; 33,700 pages of
resource reports had been filed using the N kiski |ocation.
He mentioned that an inner connect could be established for
Val dez, but that there was no intent to switch sites.

10: 14: 03 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon said that the conmittee was still in
need of information about the profitability of noving the
project forward. She expressed concern that the state would
buy from producers. She asserted that the state would take
all of the risk by taking lead of the project, sone of
whi ch could be mtigated by bringing in other partners. She
wondered what the actual profit would be for the state, and
whether the project would result in energy security for
Al aska.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon discussed paynment in lieu of taxes
(PILT) paynents. She referred to a working group forned by
the adm ni stration, Muinicipal Advisory Goup (MAG, and was
gathering information on how to divide up the profit from a
project that had econonmic challenges. She spoke of the
i ssue of access to |low cost energy. She restated that the
concern of the commttee was that the project was not
economcally feasible. She nentioned the idea of allow ng
Al askans to donate their permanent funds, and for state

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



departments to contribute funds, to help finance the
project. She wondered when the |egislature could expect to
see real nunbers related to how nuch the gas would be sold
for and what real opportunities were available in actual
dol l ars and cents.

10:19: 35 AM

M. Meyer said that he could provide the information at a
| ater date. He said that one of the mmjor work efforts for
the corporation as the project transitioned to state
| eadership, which he clarified did not nean that the state
woul d be assuming all of the risk, was that risks would be
managed and appropriately allocated to ensure a viable
project and an acceptable risk profile for investors. He
said that part of the process was structural, but another
aspect was phasing; the lowest unit cost was to build the
project all at once, but would be a nassive project. He
said that the construction profile should be flexible in
order to regulate the overall cost. He said that the 42
inch pipe presented the |east execution risk and was the
optimal design for the future. He Il|anented that the
corporation could not set the price in the LNG nmarket, but
stressed that the state had advantages over conpeting
suppliers. M. Myer spoke of the non-price attributes of
the state that were attractive to the market. He said that
the buyers would be taking a career risk by advocating or
recomendi ng the state as a supply source under a 20 year
contract. He related that the pricing would depend on the
size of the project; three trains all at once was optinal
backing up from that would result in a loss of
conpetitiveness.

10: 23: 25 AM

M. Myer said that funding the project with high cost
capital would put pricing out of the market, if the nmjors
were required to fund the project with their hurdle rate -
the project would not be economcally viable in the current
market. He said that third-party financing would put the
price in the zone of conpetitiveness, and renoving al

taxes would nmake the price point even nore conpetitive. He
believed that a PILT would be inevitable, the size of which
woul d be determned by the size and affordability of the
project. He thought that the project had three ngjor
variables: the rate of return, the PILT paynent, and the
price of the gas. He said that a new project could not be

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



built for the Japanese price of $7btu, a higher price would
be necessary, possible $70btu. He noted that the state did
not have to link the price of LNG to oil, which neant the
AGDC would not need to take the comodity risk associated
with a gas purchase. He said that the state would be the
pi peline conpany and the term nal conpany and that the gas
cost would be a pass through. He stated that the gas
producers woul d have a net backed type of price because the
price would need to clear the market daily. He discussed
the variables for keeping the unit cost for infrastructure
as | ow as possi bl e.

10: 27: 31 AM

M. Meyer shared that the project benefits to the state
were many and should not be underestimated. He said that
the reserves in the north would far outlast the debt on the
pi peline. He noted that gasoline was not corrosive, and
that once the debt was paid off the state could reap
billions of dollars per vyear. He reiterated that the
project structure was a nmain area of focus for 2017.

10: 28: 42 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon appreciated the comments. She stressed
that the commttee needed to fully understand the financial
benefit to the state, the rate of the return to the state,
and how well head val ue negotiations would be handl ed. She
believed all of the scenarios presented by AGDC should be
nodel ed for the conmttee. She understood that AGDC was
currently in search of a financial advisor, and |anented
that a financial report requested by the |egislature was
two years overdue. She said that the corporation should be
prepared to provide the conmttee with nodels of all of the
assunptions that AGDC had put forward. She stated that if
the producers did not have risk because they were selling
at a particular price point, the details should be
illustrated in a graph and an argunment should be nmade as to
why this was a good deal for Al aska.

10: 31: 01 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked whether M. Meyer believed that a
20 year contract with a utility could be secured.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



M. Myer replied in the affirmative. He thought that |ong
term contracts were necessary because they were currently
common in the industry. He relayed that "larger players”
were currently trying to nove the market to a shorter term
timeframe, but believed that the state would be able to
make an offer attractive enough to secure long term
contracts. He thought t hat the demand growth and
contestable contracts limted the w ndow of opportunity for
t he project.

10: 33: 43 AM

M. Meyer asserted that the financial structuring of the
project would be nmade available to the conmttee as soon as
possi ble. He pointed out that nunicipalities and regional
corporations were covered under SB 138.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon noted the 20 year contracts were in flux
and that due to surplus the nmarket was changing. She
wondered who the corporation would be using for third-party
fi nanci ng.

10: 35: 48 AM

Senator von Inmhof thought that it made sense to nodel the
ranges of all of the different inputs of the project in
order to locate the "sweet spot" of what woul d be needed to
execute the project.

10: 36: 42 AM

Senator Mcciche refuted the claim that there was a w ndow
of tinme to consider; sound econonmc were sound economni cs.
He said that when oil was cheap there was little incentive
to convert to LNG He thought that there would be a "reset”
to energy prices and that the long-term horizon of oil and
LNG rel ated prices was unpredi ctable. He asked how the risk
of a long-term |lower conmmodity price could be adequately
eval uat ed.

10: 38: 34 AM

M. Meyer replied that when he tal ked about the w ndow of
opportunity, part of that was not only demand growth, but
was the expiration of significant contracts in Japan and
Korea. He thought that it would be helpful for the
corporation to illustrate on a graph a better picture of

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



the contracts and their fall off dates. He reiterated that
nost of the buyers would be wutilities, which were
conservative entities. He said that in the Asia Pacific
nost of the LNG had traded on an oil |inked basis; if the
volatility of Korean and Japanese LNG were to Dbe
superinposed over the oil volatility curve it would track
identically. He furthered that those conpanies were tired
of that volatility in their gas arena, and were working to

separate LNG from the oil. He expounded on the effects of
the Henry Hub price assessnments on investor confidence. He
explained that AGDC was not an oil conpany, but an

infrastructure conpany, which would be able to offer a
| ong-term stable price.

10: 42: 39 AM

M. Meyer believed that the corporation had an attractive
product offering to the Asian wutilities through their
ability to contract for a stable price. He said that part
of his enthusiasm stemmed from the fact that LNG could be
offered at a stable price, which allowed for |everage over
t he conpetition.

10:43:43 AM

Senator Mcciche said that buying countries used to be
isolated and in conpetition. He shared that unanswered
supply several years ago resulted in narket organization
between the countries, and heavy downward pressure on the
price of LNG He agreed that working against volatility was
a good idea, but he feared that this would result in
substantially lower prices for the long term He wondered
whet her the |ower cost would prove to be favorable only to
t he buyer.

M. Meyer offered a brief history of oil sales and prices
in the world. He thought that current buyers had nore
supplier choices than in the past. He believed that AGDCs
pricing for wutility would be attractive to buyers and
sellers alike. He reiterated that a long-term stable price
was critical to the project. He stated that large utilities
that served mllions of rate payers would be attracted to
stability, rather than volatility. He thought that because
the project was a larger, capital intensive project, that
reached hard to access land in the north.

10: 47: 43 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



M. Meyer continued that the project was al so conventi onal
He l|ikened shale drilling to walking up a down escal ator;
you had to keep noving just to keep the production flat. He
believed that the LNG reserve in the state was a
conventional resource that was uni que and attracti ve.

10: 49: 09 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked whether AGDC had submtted the tax
ruling letter to the IRS.

M. Meyer replied in the negative. He said that when it was
done it would be done twice. He elaborated that M I bank
and Ni xon- Peabody were working together on the letter. He
thought that a significant investor would want to see a
specific letter on a specific structure. He said that a
"straw man" structure letter would be witten, as well as a
final structure letter.

10: 50: 16 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon expressed concern with a straw man
letter. She wondered whether it was like the email that the
Al aska Gasline Port Authority (AGPA) had received that
stated that Exxon was interested in buying gas from the
state. She said that the conmttee had a letter from the
| RS based on that enuail.

M. Meyer understood that only one letter currently
existed. He clarified that, if he had a letter fromthe IRS
today giving the go ahead, AGC would need to conpose
anot her letter. He expounded that | enders, equity
investors, and other interested parties would talk to
| egislators, the federal governnent, and many parties
before mking an investnent. He anticipated nmulitple
request letters.

10: 51: 53 AM

Co-Chair MacKi nnon asked to view Slides 38 and 39
pertaining to AKLNG acqui sition.

M. Meyer showed Slide 39, "KENAI LNG PLANT ACQUI SI Tl ON
BACKGROUND" :

 ConocoPhilI'i ps announces Kenai LNG plant for sale in
Decenber 2016.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



e Data roomopen from9 January until 3 March, 2017
» Bids due 17 March, 2017

e Acquisition of the Kenai Plant fits broader AGDC
strat egy.

e Alternative LNG supply to FNGIGQJ no need to
expand |iquefaction plant.

 Encourages Cook Inlet production.

 Increases waterfront access for the Al aska LNG
Proj ect.

e Early revenue for the Al aska LNG project.

e Additional increnental LNG production capacity at
reduced cost vs greenfield.

» Enables AGC early commercial engagenent with LNG
Buyers and ot her Al aska LNG parti ci pants.

* Consistent wth statutory responsibility *“for
devel oping an Alaskan liquefied natural gas
project, and other transportation nechanisns to
deliver natural gas in-state”.

* Future value increase under nultiple scenarios.

10: 52: 53 AM

M. Meyer advanced to Slide 40, which showed a diagram that
illustrated the future value uplift for the Kenai LNG pl ant
acqui sition. Under current use the plant provided a site
for in-state LNG delivery by truck and rail, and barge
|l oading for <coastal communities, and could export LNG
during the sumrer. He believed that the facility had a high
probability of future value increase under two reasonable
scenarios: with the gasline, refurbishnment of the existing
LNG trains at Kenai wuld result in a low cost LNG
production capacity (1.5Mpa), conpared to newbuild
facilities; or, without a gasline, Alaska would eventually
face a gas crisis as Cook Inlet production becane
i nadequate to supply Anchorage plus Fairbanks; at this
point, the COP Kenai plant would have high value as an
inport facility and the only alternative supply. He
admtted that the funds already allocated to AGDC woul d not
be sufficient to purchase the Kenai LNG pl ant.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked whether the facility was currently

on the tax rolls in the borough.
M. Meyer answered in the affirmative.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 20 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



Co-Chair MacKinnon surmsed that if the acquisition were
successful, the state would be required to pay PILT to the
city of Kenai.

M. Meyer thought that it was too soon in the process to
determ ne whether a PILT paynent woul d be necessary.

10: 55: 44 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon understood that the Kenai facility and
gas conversion was a huge cost driver inside the overall
project. She queried how the purchase would be beneficial
to the state.

M. Meyer thought the purchase had val ue under any of the
three scenarios listed on Slide 40. He anplified that with
the gasline facility would be the cheapest source of
1.5M pa because it would be a brown field. He said that the
facility would not be a storage area for 20Mpa. He
relented that the asset was not critical to the gasline,
stressed that it was inportant for Alaska to own and
control the facility.

10: 58: 38 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked whet her there was understandi ng of
operating costs when considering purchase of the facility.

M. Meyer explained that the site that AKLNG was
considering was down the road fromthe Kenai site, and that
the Kenai site could be tied into the AKLNG gasline,
because nmany off-take points were optinmal. He stated that
the Kenai LNG plan acquisition was a stand-al one idea and
woul d not be included in the FERC application. He furthered
that if the plant were going to be refurbished it would
have its own application, be reiterated that he thought
that the asset would incorporate well into the overall
project. He claimed that it was existing capacity and could
reduce the execution risk of the LNG facility.

11: 00: 34 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon reiterated her request for information
about costs for operating the Kenai plant.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 21 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



M. Meyer replied that he had some confidential information
pertaining to current operating costs of the facility, but
t hose nunbers woul d change under different scenari os.

Co-Chair MacKinnon reiterated that she was |ooking for an
estimate of what the projected operating costs would be to
the state.

M. Meyer reiterated that it would not be appropriate to
share the nunbers in a public setting. He said that when a
case was made for additional funding, the nunbers would be
i ncluded in the scenari os.

11: 03: 14 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon referred to the docunent "FY16-FY18 RSAs
and Agreenents," (copy on file) and queried the $50,000
allocation for a contract involving former Attorney GCeneral
Crai g Ri chards.

M. Meyer said that the contract was no | onger active.

11: 04: 16 AM

Senator M cciche requested information about the potentia
for a tax-free status.

11: 05: 24 AM
AT EASE

11: 05: 42 AM
RECONVENED

Co- Chair MacKi nnon expressed hope that the process would
continue to be transparent. She relayed that sone
constituents believed that it would not be in the best
interest of the state to nove forward with the gasline. She
asserted that if an executive session was necessary in
order for the commttee to view the financial information
on the project, then she was wlling to arrange the
nmeeting. She stressed that conversations were inportant,
but that the nunmbers were crucial to the comnmttee, and to
t he people of the State of Al aska.

11: 08: 39 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 22 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



M. Meyer appreciated Senator MacKi nnon' closing remarks.
He understood that the corporation needed to denponstrate to
all Alaskans the viability and econom c inportance of the
project to the state.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon di scussed housekeepi ng.

#
ADJ OURNVENT
11:10: 24 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 11:10 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 23 02/ 14/ 17 9:06 A M



